
ABABABAB    
HEALTH & ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

TUESDAY 25 NOVEMBER 2008 
7.00 PM 
 

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall 
 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 
 

 

 At this point Members must declare whether they have an interest, whether 
personal or prejudicial, in any of the items on the agenda. Members must 
also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in relation to any 
items under consideration. 
 

 

3. Minutes of the Meeting of the Health & Adult Social Care Scrutiny 
Panel held on 14 October 2008 
 

1 - 4 

4. Peterborough LINk - Presentation from the Shaw Trust 
 

5 - 6 

 To receive a presentation regarding the formation of the Peterborough LINk. 
 

 

5. Review of  the Council's Charging Policy for Adult Social Care 
Services 
 

7 - 12 

 To consider the impact of the charging policy and its future in the context of 
the changing nature of social care. 
 

 

6. NHS Peterborough 5 year Strategic Plan 
 

13 - 14 

 To receive proposals for the development of the PCT 5 year Strategic Plan. 
 

 

7. Peterborough Community Services 
 

15 - 16 

 To note the decision of the PCT Board regarding the long-term 
organisational model for Community Services. 
 

 

8. Annual Health Check - results of the 2007/08 check published by the 
Healthcare Commission 
 

17 - 20 

 To note the ratings for all local NHS Trusts. 
 

 

9. Feedback and Update Report 
 

21 - 22 

Public Document Pack



2 

 To receive a standard report providing feedback on any issues or questions 
raised at previous meetings. 
 

 

10. Forward Plan of Key Decisions 
 

23 - 36 

 To consider the latest version of the Forward Plan. 

 

 

 

11. Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel Work Programme 2008/09 
 

37 - 40 

 To consider the Panel’s latest work programme. 
 

 

12. Date of Next Meeting 
 

 

 Tuesday, 6 January 2009 at 7.00pm in Bourges & Viersen Committee 
Rooms. 
 

 

 
 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact Alex 
Daynes on 01733 452447 as soon as possible. 
 

 
 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: B Rush (Chairman), C Burton (Vice-Chairman), F Benton, J Goodwin, J Holdich, 
K Sharp and W Trueman 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: R Dobbs, D Harrington and D Fower 

 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Alex Daynes on telephone 01733 
452447 or by email – alexander.daynes@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
 



 

 

AB 
 
 
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY PANEL 

HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH  
14 OCTOBER 2008 

 
 

Present: 
 

Councillors Rush (Chairman), Benton, C Burton, Goodwin, Holdich and Sharp 
 

Also Present: Cllr Lamb  
Annette Beeton  
Annette Newton 

Cabinet Member for Health & Adult Social Care Services 
LINks 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Mental Health Trust 

Officers in 
attendance: 
 

Angela Bailey 
Aidan Fallon                
Robert Ferris               
Ruth Griffiths 
Tina Hornsby            
Priti Patel 
Denise Radley 
Anne Reeder 
Liz Boome                   
Alex Daynes                
 

Chief Executive, Peterborough Community Services 
Head of Corporate Assurance, NHS Peterborough 
Chief Operating Officer, Peterborough Community Services 
Lawyer, Education Children Services and Adult Social Care 
Head of Performance and Informatics, NHS Peterborough 
Principal Lawyer 
Director of Adult Social Services and Performance, PCC 
Peterborough Community Services 
Performance Scrutiny Officer, PCC 
Cabinet Officer, PCC 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
Apologies were received from Jane Pigg, David Monk and Diana Millard.  
 

2. Declarations of Interest 
  

There were no declarations of interest from Members of the Panel. 
 
3. Minutes of Meeting held 2 September 2008 
  
  The minutes of the meeting held on 2 September 2008 were approved as an accurate 

record with the following amendments: 
 

1. Item 4, action 2; the Head of Corporate Assurance, not the Director of Adult Social 
Services and Performance, to liaise with Councillors Rush and C Burton. 

2. Note Councillor Lamb’s attendance. 
  

4. Quarterly Performance Report on Adult Social Care Services in Peterborough 

 
The Panel received a report from the Head of Performance and Informatics updating the 
progress and key achievements on the objectives within the Annual Accountability 
Agreement.  Members were requested to review the quarter 1 position on adult social care 
targets, areas of identified risk and consider proposed remedial actions. 
 
The committee was advised that some of the targets for the performance framework 
(Comprehensive Area Assessment) differed from the previous framework (Performance 
Assessment Framework) and therefore, not all data had been captured until recently.   
 
Observations and questions were raised and responses given including: 

1



 

 

 

• It is expected that the results of actions from the Adult Social Care team would be 
best seen in the quarter 3 report. 

• Not all the necessary data was available to provide a quarter 2 report at this time. 
 
 ACTION AGREED 
 
 1. To note the report 

2. To receive information on progress and actions taken to achieve performance 
targets when the quarter 2 figures are reported. 

 
 

5. Draft Revised Partnership Agreement between the Council and NHS Peterborough in 
respect of Adult Social Care Services 

 
The Panel received a report from the Director of Adult Social Services and Performance 
reviewing the partnership agreement for adult social care and health services.  The Panel 
was asked to note the work on reviewing the partnership agreement and to comment on the 
principles and key issues that formed the basis of further negotiations between the City 
Council and NHS Peterborough (the Primary Care Trust, (PCT)). 
 
Members were advised that the budget would be pooled from Peterborough City Council 
(PCC) and NHS Peterborough as this would enable more flexible spending.  However, 
there would be a strict reporting process for any spending taken from the budget.  The 
committee was advised that PCC and NHS Peterborough would also be pooling expertise 
to ensure the best outcome was achieved. 

 
Observations and questions were raised and responses given including: 
 

• The pooled budget would enable more flexibility relating to spending on treatments 
such as provision of drugs and support in the community.  Decisions would be made 
on best practise bases for individual cases rather than on which partner provides 
which service. 

• It is anticipated that increased prevention and early intervention work will lead to 
savings in health spending. 

 
 

ACTION AGREED 
 
 To note the report. 
 
 

6. Peterborough Community Services 

  
The Panel received a report supported by a presentation from the Chief Operating Officer 
that gave a summary of the findings from the option appraisal process carried out to identify 
the most suitable future long term organisational model for Peterborough Community 
Services (PCS).  Members were updated on the progress made so far with the work and 
were advised that a further report would be submitted to the Panel in November following 
the decision of the NHS Peterborough Board, ready to be submitted to Cabinet on 1 
December 2008. 
 
Members were presented with the Business Case and Option Appraisal work that led to the 
recommendation for the preferred organisational model for Peterborough Community 
Services; a Community Foundation Trust.  Members were advised that the costs contained 
in the report would be amended as set up costs had to be calculated. 
 

2



 

 

Observations and questions were raised and responses given including: 

• The NHS Board would make a recommendation to Cabinet, not a decision. 

• The advice received from financial advisors was that VAT would not need to be paid 
as PCS is a NHS body. 

• The NHS pension scheme would be continued and maintained for all staff.  This 
pension fund is secured by taxation legislation. 

• The Social Enterprise option would not allow continued pension provision. 

• Efficiency savings would need to be calculated before the set up costs are 
calculated.  

  
ACTION AGREED 

 
 To note the report. 
 
 

7. Feedback and Update Report 

 
The Panel received a regular report that forms part of the Panel’s 2008/2009 work 
programme.  The report provided details of the results of the NHS East of England 
Consultation – ‘Towards the Best Together’ and included details of the changes agreed by 
the NHS East of England Board and published on the NHS East of England’s website. 
 
Members were advised that the Local Involvement Network (LINk) would be hosted by the 
Shaw Trust and that governance and procurement work was already developed.  Members 
were further advised that the Shaw Trust was a UK company. 

 
 ACTION AGREED 
  

1. To receive a presentation from the Shaw Trust. 
2. To note the report.  

 

8. Forward Plan of Key Decisions 

 
The Panel received the Council’s Forward Plan which outlined forthcoming Executive 
Decisions for the period October 2008 to January 2009 for consideration.  

 
 ACTION AGREED 
 
 To note the report. 
 
 
9. Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel Work Programme  
 

The Panel received and noted the latest work programme for 2008/2009.   
 
 
11. Date of Next Meeting 
 
 Tuesday 25 November 2008 at 7.00 pm in the Bourges and Viersen meeting rooms.  
 

 
Meeting closed at 8.05pm 

 
 
 

Chairman 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY 
PANEL 
 

Agenda Item No. 4 
 

25 NOVEMBER 2008  
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Director of Strategic Resources                                
 
Report Author – Liz Boome 
Contact Details – (01733)  452324 
 

PETERBOROUGH LOCAL INVOLVEMENT NETWORK (LINk) – PRESENTATION BY 
THE SHAW TRUST 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 

To advise the Panel of the progress made in establishing a Local Involvement Network (LINk) in 
Peterborough. 

 
2. LINKS TO CORPORATE PLAN, SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY AND LOCAL 

AREA AGREEMENT 
 

This report links to the Council’s corporate priority to ‘achieve the best possible health and well 
being’. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 received royal Assent in 

October 2007.  Under the Act Patients’ Forums were abolished from March 2008 and Local 
Involvement Networks established from April 2008. 
 

3.2 The purpose of LINks is to help strengthen the system that enables communities to influence the 
care they receive.  Backed by legislation in the Act, LINKs will: 

§ provide everyone in the community – from individuals to voluntary groups - with the chance to 
say what they think about local health and social care services – what is working and what is 
not. 

§ give people the chance to influence how services are planned and run.  

§ feedback to services what people have said about services so that things can be improved, 

§ refer items to local Overview and Scrutiny Committees 

 
3.3 Each Local Authority was allocated funds from the Department of Health to procure a host 

organisation - this funding is not ring-fenced but part of the Area Based Grant.  The host would 
be responsible for setting up the LINk. 

 
3.4 In September 2008, The Shaw Trust was appointed as the host organisation for the 

Peterborough LINk. 
 
3.5 Lesley Knapton and Dinah Shaw of The Shaw Trust will attend the meeting to give a presentation 

to Panel members regarding progress made in the establishment of the Peterborough LINk. 
 
4. NEXT STEPS 
 

That Members will note the information regarding the Peterborough LINk 
 
5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

5



 
 The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 

6



HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY 
PANEL 
 

Agenda Item No. 5 

25 NOVEMBER 2008 
 

Public Report 

 
 

Report of the Director of Director of Adult Social Services and Performance 
 
Report Authors – Denise Radley, Director of Adult Social Service and Performance 
Contact Details – Tel:  758444 
Mark Gedney, Financial Systems Manager, NHS Peterborough (Tel: 758483) 
 

REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL’S CHARGING POLICY FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE 
SERVICES 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 
1.1 The Council’s charging policy for non-residential Adult Social Care services has been in 

operation now for more than 5 years (implemented in its original form in April 2003), and has 
been subject to a number of reviews throughout this period. This report is submitted to the 
Scrutiny Committee to consider the impact of the charging policy, and its future in the context of 
the changing nature of social care. 

 
1.2 The purpose of this report is to enable the Scrutiny Committee to review the current form of the 

Council’s charging policy, look at alternative options, and consider a number of amendments to 
this policy.  
 

2. LINKS TO CORPORATE PLAN, SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY AND LOCAL 
AREA AGREEMENT 

 
2.1 This report links to the Council’s corporate priority to ‘achieve the best possible health and well 

being’. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Peterborough Primary Care Trust commissions and provides a range of social care services for 

vulnerable people on behalf of Peterborough City Council, but is reliant on income from client 
charges to help pay for these services, and to extend and improve them. The amount of charges 
raised from social care service users has increased year on year since the introduction of the 
current Charging Policy, and approximately £5 million was raised from charges during the 
2007/08 financial year including for residential and non-residential services.  The cost of 
administering the charging policy is approximately £400,000. Approximately 1300 people are 
currently accessing homecare services, and of these, around 40% pay an assessed charge, 20% 
pay the full cost charge, and the remaining 40% pay no charge.   

 
3.2 The Council’s charging policy for Adult Social Care services was formulated in response to 

charging guidance issued by the Department of Health (DoH) in 2002, and was first implemented 
from April 2003. The DoH guidance contains a number of minimum requirements that Council’s 
charging policies must comply with; including protected minimum income levels below which 
charges cannot be applied, but also allows Councils some discretion to tailor charging policies to 
their own design.  

 
3.3 Local Authorities are not required by law to charge clients for their social care services, however 

the calculation methods used by central Government to determine Local Authority funding levels 
for Adult Social Care services assumes a certain level of income from charges. The vast majority 
(over 97%) of Local Authorities have decided to make charges for the social care services that 

7



they provide, to ensure, where possible, that service levels are sufficiently funded and available 
to meet the needs of their local populations. 
 

3.4 From 1st April 2004, at the commencement of the Greater Peterborough Primary Care 
Partnership, the operation of the charging and collection functions for social care services was 
delegated by the Council to the Peterborough Primary Care Trust. Responsibility for the charging 
policy itself is retained by the Council.  

 
3.5 The charging policy has been the subject of a number of reviews during the past five years, and 

various changes have been made as a result of these reviews, including the up rating and 
increasing of standard allowances and standard charges, the introduction of charges for 
attendance at day care services, and the introduction of a capital tariff charge into non-residential 
financial assessments.  A joint working partnership has also been formed with the Department of 
Work and Pensions, which has facilitated the financial assessment process through the sharing 
of data, and has helped to increase welfare benefit take-up among the client groups in receipt of 
Adult Social Care services.  

 
4.  IMPACT OF THE CHARGING POLICY 
 
4.1 The years since the introduction of the current charging policy have seen a steady increase, both 

locally and nationally, in the numbers of people accessing non-residential social care services. 
This is due, in the main, to demographic trends and increasing life expectancy rates. The 
imposition of charges for social care services is often contentious, and rarely popular, however, 
feedback received from many contacts with service users over a number of years has shown that 
generally there is an acceptance that some form of client contribution is necessary to help meet 
the cost of the care services they receive - particularly so given that many service users receive 
Social Security benefits such as Attendance Allowance and Disability Living Allowance (Care) 
that are paid to help with the extra costs associated with disability.  

 
4.2 Correspondingly, the numbers of people refusing services because of the requirement to pay a 

charge appears to be relatively low – less than 100 clients have been recorded as declining 
services in the 2007/08 financial year, and not all of these are solely due to cost. Charging for 
care services does not therefore seem to significantly deter members of the local population from 
taking up care services. Since the charging policy’s introduction, the levels of many elements of 
the charges have been increased in line with inflation, and some have been increased above this. 
With the recent introduction of the charge for day care attendance, the number of services that 
are charged for has also increased.  

 
4.3 Funding pressures and greater demand for services have increased the importance of income 

from charges in terms of meeting the care needs of the local population from a balanced budget. 
If the Council were to consider the abolition of charges for its social care services, the shortfall in 
funding would be significant, and would prompt the re-consideration of service levels/funding 
priorities and local taxation levels.        

 
5. IMPACT OF RECENT CHANGES 
 
5.1 The charge for day care services, introduced in April 2008, has generated a level of income that 

has so far been much lower than predicted - mainly due to the higher than expected number of 
day care service users who have been financially assessed as not needing to pay a charge. The 
original estimate of income from day care charges was in the region of £60k per annum, but the 
level of charges raised so far during the 08/09 year indicates that only a quarter of this figure will 
be realised.  

 
5.2 Charges for day care have proved administratively difficult to collect, as patterns of service use 

have been unpredictable, and record-keeping has not been easy to obtain to a consistent 
standard. Many of these early difficulties have been overcome, although the charge still demands 
higher levels of administration resource than is necessary for other services where charges are 
made.  

 

8



5.3 There has been some anecdotal evidence that service users have decided not to attend day 
care, or have reduced their number of attendances because of the imposition of a charge – 
however, attendance numbers overall have generally appeared to continue at the same levels as 
before its introduction. Of greater impact to the future of day care services will be the care 
personalisation agenda, where more service flexibility, choice and individual control are 
demanded. The forthcoming introduction of individual budgets will increase these requirements, 
and many clients may decide that the existing organised day care services do not meet their 
needs, and purchase services elsewhere.   

 
5.4 The introduction of the tariff charge against capital from April 2008 has been administratively 

more straightforward to implement, and early indications are that the additional revenue this 
charge amendment will generate in the 2007/08 year are in line with the predicted figure of £30k.  

 
6. CURRENT & FUTURE ISSUES 
 

FUTURE OF SOCIAL CARE FUNDING 
 
6.1 The Government has recently launched a pre-consultation on the future funding of adult social 

care. This is in response to widespread acknowledgement that the current system is in need of 
fundamental reform to cope with the demands placed upon it by increasing life expectancy, and 
service user’s expectations of greater choice and independence. The consultation aims to obtain 
the views of the public about how the responsibility for funding should be shared between 
families, individuals and the state, and will culminate in the issue of a green paper next year 
which aims to take these views into account and present the Government’s proposals for tackling 
the challenges.  

 
6.2 The pre-consultation is due to end in November of this year.  Many critics have said that the 

current system of means-testing is complex, and often unfair on the most vulnerable people, 
however it is unclear at this stage the extent to which radical change will be proposed. It appears 
likely that charging for social care services in some form will remain.  

 
6.3 Changes to the Council’s Charging Policy are likely to be required in response to any new 

guidance issued by the Department of Health in response to this, but these will be addressed 
separately to this report, at the appropriate time. 

 
SELF DIRECTED SUPPORT / INDIVIDUAL BUDGETS 

 
6.4 The implementation of Individual Budgets represents a new approach to meeting the care needs 

of clients. This initiative involves the payment of funds, calculated by cross-referencing a client’s 
own assessment of their needs with a new resource allocation system, directly to the client - who 
can then decide how best use these funds to improve their lives. The forthcoming introduction of 
Individual Budgets in Peterborough, and the move away from commissioning traditional, 
organised care services towards a system of self directed support, raises a number of charging 
issues for Local Authorities who have historically designed their charging policies around defined 
care services.  

 
6.5 The DoH has provided some early guidance about these issues to the 13 Local Authorities that 

have taken part in the Individual Budget pilot scheme - but further, more detailed guidance is due 
to be issued shortly in response to a consultation and wider review of Fairer Charging in the 
context of Individual Budgets.    

 
6.6 The DoH has said that Councils who are looking at revising their charging regimes may want to 

await the outcome of this review before implementing permanent changes. In the interim 
however, the planned introduction of Individual Budgets in Peterborough from January 2009 
requires an amendment to the Council’s charging policy to accommodate the changes, and to 
prescribe the client contribution calculation method for Individual Budget holders.  

 
6.7 It is therefore proposed that the Council’s charging policy be amended with effect from January 

2009 so that under Individual Budgets, as now, clients are subject to the standard fairer charging 

9



assessment by the calculation method defined in the current charging policy. The figure resulting 
from the assessment is the charge that will be deducted from the Individual Budget payment to 
the client. It is also proposed that if the client’s assessed charge exceeds the value of the 
Individual Budget, or if the client has capital assets that exceed the maximum capital limit 
(currently £22,250) - then the value of the Individual Budget will be zero.  In this scenario the 
client may choose to make arrangements for their care independently or can opt for NHS 
Peterborough to arrange services for which they will charged in accordance with the charging 
policy.  

 
OTHER ISSUES 

 
Charge levels 

 
6.8 A recent extensive survey of Local Authorities and their social care charges by “Counsel and 

Care” (a national charity whose aim is to get the best care for elderly people) has identified that 
among the 34 Local Authorities that took part, the average full cost hourly rate for homecare is 
£12.84, and that figures (for those Councils that charge) range from £8.20 to £18.00 an hour. 
Peterborough’s figure is below this average at £12.48 per hour, and is pegged to increase year 
on year by inflation – so this represents good value in comparison with many other Authorities. 
Other charge comparisons include Meals on Wheels (Average: £2.91, ranging from £1.60 to 
£3.99, Peterborough £3.20), and the charge for transport to day care (can be up to £2.60, 
Peterborough: £1.50). 

 
Extra care schemes 

 
6.9 A further two Extra Care supported housing schemes have opened in the past two years – Friary 

Court in Burton Street, and The Pavilions in Millfield. These schemes have been purposely 
designed and built to offer high levels of comfort, safety and security for their occupants, and to 
meet a range of differing care needs. The level of care provided within these schemes is 
personally tailored to meet individual tenants’ needs during the day; with an on-call care service 
available throughout the night should it be needed. The charging policy already contains suitable 
provisions within it to accommodate such schemes and to ensure that the policy is fairly and 
consistently applied.  

 
Disability related expenditure allowance 

 
6.10 A standard disability related expenditure allowance is applied uniformly in all fairer charging 

financial assessments in respect of any additional expense that the client may incur as a result of 
their condition or disability. This figure is currently set at £32 for a single person and £64 for a 
couple - where a couple assessment applies. It has however become apparent that the doubling 
of the single person disability rate for couples is not equitable where both members of the couple 
do not have a disability. It is therefore proposed that the couple disability rate only be applied to 
the financial assessment where both members of the couple are in receipt of either Attendance 
Allowance (High or Low rate) or Disability Living Allowance Care Component (Middle or Higher 
rate).  

 
Day care charge – voluntary funded day care provision 

 
6.11 A charge for day care currently applies to service users of all day care services that are 

commissioned and funded wholly by the Local Authority. There are, however, a small number of 
day care services that are majority funded by voluntary organisations, but which receive a small 
amount of additional funding from the Local Authority. Day care charges have not been applied to 
service users of these schemes so far, in recognition of the fact that the majority of the cost of the 
service is met from sources other than the Local Authority, but confirmation of this approach is 
needed to ensure that this practice sits fairly within the charging policy.   

 
Level of day care charge 

 

10



6.12 The current daily charge for attendance at a day care service for a stay that exceeds three hours 
is £2. Comparison with other Local Authorities that charge for day care shows that this is 
amongst the lowest charge, with averages amongst Authorities grouped in comparator clusters 
ranging from £9.77 to £12.14. The range of day care charges is very wide, from as little as £1, up 
to £30.60. Given the relatively high administrative burden of collecting this charge, consideration 
needs to be given to increasing the level to a higher figure from April 2009, to £5 per attendance. 
This would still be well below the average figures quoted above, but would raise additional 
revenue to help protect and extend services. The charging policy would still continue to ensure 
that a charge would only pay if service users’ income were sufficiently high to enable them to 
meet this. However, the significant amount of opposition to this charge when it was proposed will 
also need to be taken into account when deciding on this change.  This would generate 
approximately an extra £19,000 per annum however this takes no account of the disincentive 
effect of an increased charge. 

 
7.  ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
7.1 The Council can choose not to charge clients for social care services, but this option would place 

a significant strain on services and budgets. A range of other charging options are possible in 
accordance with Government guidance, but the Council’s current charging policy, including the 
proposed amendments detailed within this report, is best felt to reflect the values of fairness, 
consistency and even-handedness, while at the same time raising sufficient revenue to help 
finance social care services.  

 
8.  IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are no legal implications relating to the proposed changes. 
 
8.2 The proposed changes, if implemented, should have a positive effect on income raised from 

charges for adult social care services.  
 
8.3 Having a charging policy that is fair and fit for purpose is key to ensuring social care achieves its 

objectives of enabling vulnerable people to live safely and independently. The charging regime 
also plays an important part in ensuring the long-term sustainability of the financing of adult 
social care. 

 
8. EXPECTED OUTCOMES 
 
8.1 This report aims to consider the impact of the charging policy, obtain approval to make some 

relatively minor amendments to it in response to forthcoming changes to the provision of social 
care services, and seek Members views two specific issues relating to day care charges.       

 
9. NEXT STEPS 
 
9.1 The Scrutiny Committee is recommended to: 
 

i) Consider and comment on the content of this report 
ii) Consider the proposed amendments to the charging policy contained in this report, 

namely: 
 
a) Under Individual Budgets, as now,  clients are subject to a standard fairer charging 

assessment by the calculation method defined in the current charging policy. For 
clients whose assessed charge exceeds the value of their Individual Budget, or 
where their capital assets exceed the maximum capital limit (currently £22,250) – the 
value of the Individual Budget will be zero however services may still be arranged by 
NHS Peterborough. 

b) The couple rate for the disability related expenditure allowance be applied only where 
both members of the couple are in receipt of either Disability Living Allowance Care 
Component (Middle or Higher rate) or Attendance Allowance (Low or High rate) 

 

11



iii) Consider the issues of :- 
a) charging for day care attendance at services which are majority funded by the 

voluntary sector, and  
b) the level of the day care charge 

 
iv) Make any additional recommendations for consideration by Cabinet 

 
10.  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) 

Act 1985) 
  

Fairer Charging Policy for Home Care and other Non-residential Social Care Services. 
Counsel & Care’s National Survey of Local Authority Care Charging & Eligibility Criteria 2008 
Comparison of Local Authority Service User Contributions 2008-09 

12



Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel 
 

Agenda Item No. 6 

25 November 2008 
 

Public Report 

 
 

Report of the Chief Executive – NHS Peterborough                                        

Report Author – Derrick Mortimer, Strategic Business Lead, Peterborough 
Community Services 

Contact Details – 01733 758580 
 

NHS PETERBOROUGH 5 YEAR STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 

For the Panel to be aware of the progress and structure of the Strategic Plan for NHS 
Peterborough (Peterborough Primary Care Trust), along with key priorities and consultation 
proposals. 

 
 
2. LINKS TO CORPORATE PLAN, SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY AND LOCAL 

AREA AGREEMENT 
 

This report links to the Council’s corporate priority to ‘achieve the best possible health and well 
being’. 
 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

Primary Care Trusts are required to produce a 5-year Strategic Plan. 
 
 
4. KEY ISSUES 
 

The first draft of the Strategic Plan was submitted to the Department of Health at the end of 
October. 
 
The Strategic Plan sets out the key priorities and initiatives that NHS Peterborough will be 
addressing over the coming years. These reflect the specific health and social care needs of our 
population – based on the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment, the Local Area Agreement, Annual 
Accountability Agreement as well as local and national targets. 

 
 
5. IMPLICATIONS 
 

The Strategic Plan sets out a challenging work plan for NHS Peterborough over the coming 
years, and provides an opportunity for NHS Peterborough to work with its partners to improve the 
wellbeing of the population. 

 
 
6. CONSULTATION 
 

It is proposed to consult on the Strategic Plan commencing January 2009, following initial sign-off 
from the Strategic Health Authority. 

 
 

13



7. EXPECTED OUTCOMES 
 

The Panel are asked to note the approach to be adopted, submitting any observations to the 
Chief Executive. 

 
 
8. NEXT STEPS 
 

Work on the initial draft of the Strategic Plan continues, with a Strategic Health Authority led 
“Panel Day” on 25 November. From this the SHA will identify areas for development before 
signing-off the draft.  NHS Peterborough then propose to consult on the Plan from January 2009. 

14



HEALTH & ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item No. 7 

November 25th 2008 
 

Public Report 

 
 

Report of: 
Robert Ferris, Chief Operating Officer of Peterborough Community Services                                   
 
Report Author:     Anne Reeder 
Contact Details: 01733 758532 
E-mail:  anne.reeder@peterboroughpct.nhs.uk 
 

FUTURE ORGANISATIONAL ARRANGEMENTS FOR PETERBOROUGH 
COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
1. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this report is for Committee to note the decision of the PCT Board regarding the 
long-term organisational model for Community Services. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1    NHS Peterborough asked for a business case recommending the preferred long term 

organisational form for the majority of services provided by Peterborough Community Services, to 
be produced for the PCT Board by November 2008. 

 
2.2 A report outlining the process for identifying the preferred long term organisational model was 

presented to the Committee on September 2nd 2008.  
 
2.3 A further report, confirming the outcome of the process and the recommendation going to the 

PCT Board on November 5th 2008, was presented to the Committee on October 14th 2008. 
 
2.4 A Business Case was presented to the PCT Board on November 5th 2008 recommending that:  
 
2.4.1 The preferred organisational model for Peterborough Community Services is a Community 

Foundation Trust for Peterborough 
 
2.4.2 Peterborough Community Services, supported by NHS Peterborough and NHS East of England 

and in partnership with Peterborough City Council, will prepare to seek the Secretary of State’s 
support to apply to become Peterborough Community Health and Social Care Foundation Trust.  

 
2.5 The PCT Board agreed the recommendations subject to Cabinet approval. 
 
2.6 Cabinet will be asked to agree the recommendations at its meeting on December 1st 2008. 
 
3. KEY ISSUES 
 
3.1  The Business case assessed three organisational models: Arms Length Trading Organisation, 

Community Foundation Trust and Social Enterprise. 
 
3.2  Based on the evaluation of benefits and costs, the community foundation model scored the 

highest and is the recommended model. 
 
3.3.1 Social care assessment and care management functions can only be delegated to statutory 

organisations. Social Enterprises are not statutory organisations and if this model had been 
chosen, Peterborough Community Services would not be able to provide fully integrated health 
and social care services.  

15



 
4. IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 By pursuing the CFT model the aim would be to achieve: 

• Services which deliver the best possible outcomes for local people 

• Increased contestability in the market resulting in higher quality and more cost effective 
services 

• Assurances that the PCT’s ‘duty of care’ to its staff is fulfilled 

• Continuation of and further building upon the extensive partnership arrangements with the 
City Council 

• Delivery of key performance indicators 

• Further improvement in performance ratings 

• Sustainable service delivery 
 
5. CONSULTATION 
 
5.1   The findings of the Next Steps Public Consultation, approved by the Board in November 2007, 

were taken into account in the process to identify the preferred organisational model. 
 
5.2   As part of the process for applying to become a CFT, two public consultations will be required: 

o Consultation by the PCT for the provider services to be established as an NHS Trust. 
o Consultation by PCS to move from the NHS Trust status to a Community Foundation Trust 

 
5.3  Both of these consultation processes will provide the Committee, the public, staff and other key 

stakeholders with the opportunity to support or reconsider the decision to apply to become a 
CFT. 

 
6. EXPECTED OUTCOMES 
 

This report is to ensure that the committee is aware of the PCT Board’s decision subject to 
Cabinet approval on 15th December 2008. 

 
7. NEXT STEPS 
 

It is proposed to bring further reports to the committee and the progress towards CFT status as 
requested by the Committee. 

 
8. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Commissioning a Patient–Led NHS,  (2005) Department of Health. 
 

NHS Peterborough Business Case Recommending the Future Organisational Model for 
Peterborough Community Services 

 
 
9. APPENDICES 
 
 None. 

16



HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY 
PANEL 

Agenda Item No. 8 
 

25 NOVEMBER 2008  Public Report 
 

Report of the Director of  Strategic Resources                                
 
Report Author – Liz Boome 
Contact Details – (01733)  452324 
 

ANNUAL HEALTH CHECK – HEALTHCARE COMMISSION RATINGS FOR LOCAL 
NHS TRUSTS 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 

To advise the Panel of the 2007/08 Annual Health Check ratings for local NHS Trusts published 
in October 2008 by the Healthcare Commission. 

 
2. LINKS TO CORPORATE PLAN, SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY AND LOCAL 

AREA AGREEMENT 
 

This report links to the Council’s corporate priority to ‘achieve the best possible health and well 
being’. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Healthcare Commission (HC) is an independent body responsible for reviewing the quality of 

healthcare and public health in England and Wales.  In England, it is responsible for assessing and 
 reporting on the performance of NHS and independent healthcare organisations. 

 
3.2 A new system of assessment for the NHS, the annual health check, was introduced in 2006 (to 

replace the star ratings system) and all Primary Care Trusts (PCTs) and NHS Trusts are required to 
declare publicly the extent to which they met the 24 core standards set by the Government for the 
year from 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2008. 

 
3.3 The annual health check looks at a much broader range of performance than the previous system of 
 star ratings and enables the Healthcare Commission to paint a more comprehensive picture than 
 ever before of what is happening in healthcare. 
 
3.4 The performance of each healthcare organisation (acute, ambulance, mental health, learning 

disability and care trusts, including foundation trusts) is assessed by reference to government 
standards and targets.  The standards are set out by the Department of Health and describe the 
basic, core standards which patients have a right to expect, such as safety and effective clinical care 
and the developmental standards that outline the level of quality to which healthcare organisations 
are expected to aspire.   

 
4. LOCAL NHS TRUST RATINGS 2007/08 
 
4.1 Results of the assessments are published each October by the Healthcare Commission.  The overall 

performance rating is made up of two parts – ‘Use of Resources’ which looks at how effectively a 
Trust manages its financial resources and ‘Quality of Services’ which is an aggregated score of 
performance against national standards and targets.  The results for local NHS Trusts for 2007/08 are 
outlined below (with the previous years’ score in brackets): 

 

§ PETERBOROUGH PRIMARY CARE TRUST 2007/2008 - rated FAIR for Quality of 
Services and FAIR for Use of Resources  

 
4.2 Assessments look at how well healthcare organisations perform in areas of interest to patients, 

service users, carers and the public. The scores below show how many of these assessments 
were met by Peterborough Primary Care Trust.  Most PCTs have two roles. They buy 

17



(commission) services for the local population from other healthcare providers, including, hospital 
(acute) trusts. Most PCTs also provide healthcare services themselves to local people - for 
example community nurses. The Healthcare Commission assesses how well PCTs both provide 
and commission healthcare services.  

 
Safety and cleanliness - This includes reducing the risk of infection, safeguarding children, 
handling medicines and equipment properly and disposing of waste safely.  
11/12 assessments met 

 
Standard of care - This includes whether the trust sees patients within set timeframes and makes 
its services equally available to everyone.  
6/7 assessments met 
 
Waiting to be seen - This includes the supervision and training for staff, whether the trust works 
with other organisations to meet patients’ individual needs and whether it follows national 
guidelines.  
3/4 assessments met 
 
Dignity and respect - This includes whether the trust treats people as individuals, observes 
confidentiality, and has a transparent process that patients can access easily if they have a 
complaint.  
9/11 assessments met 
 
Keeping the public healthy - This includes whether the trust helps to improve the health of the 
local community, understands local people’s health needs and promotes public health.  
5/7 assessments met 
 
Good management - This includes whether the trust treats staff fairly, stores information properly 
and carries out all the necessary checks before recruiting staff.  
15/16 assessments met 
 
Commissioning services - This includes how well the PCT buys (commissions) services for its 
local population, such as hospital care and other specialist treatment. Part of this commissioning 
work involves identifying local people’s health needs and helping to develop services to meet 
their needs.  
10/15 assessments met 
 
Planning for local improvement - This includes how well the PCT performed in its plans to 
develop and deliver healthcare services in the area.  
13/22 assessments met 

 
§ CAMBRIDGESHIRE AND PETERBOROUGH MENTAL HEALTH PARTNERSHIP NHS 

TRUST 2007/2008 - Rated EXCELLENT for Quality of Services and GOOD (fair in 
2006/07) for Use of Resources 

 
4.3 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough NHS Foundation Trust (CPFT) has been rated among the 

best of all Trusts in the country by the Healthcare Commission - and is one of just only four in the 
eastern region recognised nationally. The Secretary of State for Health, Alan Johnson, and the 
Chair of the Healthcare Commission, Prof Sir Ian Kennedy, sent a personal letter of 
congratulations to Karen Bell, Chief Executive of CPFT, congratulating her and everyone in the 
Trust on their performance after it received a rating of “excellent” for its services and “good” for its 
use of resources, putting it among the top 57 NHS Trusts in the country. 
 

4.4 The scores below show how many of the assessments were met by the Trust.  
 

Safety and cleanliness - This includes reducing the risk of infection, safeguarding children, 
handling medicines and equipment properly and disposing of waste safely.  
10/11 assessments met 
 

18



Standard of care - This includes whether the trust sees patients within set timeframes and make 
its services equally available to everyone.  
10/11 assessments met 
 
Waiting to be seen - This includes the supervision and training for staff, whether the trust works 
with other organisations to meet patients’ individual needs and whether it follows national 
guidelines.  
2/2 assessments met 

 
Dignity and respect - This includes whether the trust treats people as individuals, observes 
confidentiality, and has a transparent process that patients can access easily if they have a 
complaint.  
9/9 assessments met 
 
Keeping the public healthy - This includes whether the trust helps to improve the health of the 
local community, understands local people’s health needs and promotes public health.  
4/4 assessments met 
 
Good management - This includes whether the trust treats staff fairly, stores information properly 
and carries out all the necessary checks before recruiting staff.  
14/14 assessments met 

 
§ EAST OF ENGLAND AMBULANCE SERVICE NHS TRUST 2007/2008 - Rated WEAK 

(good in 2006/07)  for Quality of Services and WEAK (fair in 2006/07) for Use of 
Resources 

 
4.5 The scores below show how many of the assessments were met by East of England Ambulance 

Service NHS Trust.  
 

Safety and cleanliness - This includes reducing the risk of infection, safeguarding children, 
handling medicines and equipment properly and disposing of waste safely.  
10/11 assessments met 
 
Standard of care - This includes whether the trust sees patients within set timeframes and make 
its services equally available to everyone.  
8/8 assessments met 
 
Waiting to be seen - This includes the supervision and training for staff, whether the trust works 
with other organisations to meet patients’ individual needs and whether it follows national 
guidelines.  
3/5 assessments met 
 
Dignity and respect - This includes whether the trust treats people as individuals, observes 
confidentiality, and has a transparent process that patients can access easily if they have a 
complaint.  
5/7 assessments met 
 
Keeping the public healthy - This includes whether the trust helps to improve the health of the 
local community, understands local people’s health needs and promotes public health.  
3/3 assessments met 
 
Good management - This includes whether the trust treats staff fairly, stores information properly 
and carries out all the necessary checks before recruiting staff.  
13/14 assessments met 
 
§ PETERBOROUGH AND STAMFORD HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST 2007/2008 

- Rated WEAK (fair in 2006/07) for Quality of Services and EXCELLENT for Use of 
Resources 

 

19



4.6 The scores below show how many of the assessments were met by Peterborough and Stamford 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust.  The rating for quality of services was badly affected by the 
orthopaedic waiting list issue which was resolved at the end of December 2007.  The Trust 
considers that this rating is incorrect and will be lodging an appeal. 

 
Safety and cleanliness - This includes reducing the risk of infection, safeguarding children, 
handling medicines and equipment properly and disposing of waste safely.  
13/13 assessments met 
 
Standard of care - This includes whether the trust sees patients within set timeframes and make 
its services equally available to everyone.  
8/9 assessments met 
 
Waiting to be seen - This includes the supervision and training for staff, whether the trust works 
with other organisations to meet patients’ individual needs and whether it follows national 
guidelines.  
5/12 assessments met 
 
Dignity and respect - This includes whether the trust treats people as individuals, observes 
confidentiality, and has a transparent process that patients can access easily if they have a 
complaint.  
9/10 assessments met 
 
Keeping the public healthy - This includes whether the trust helps to improve the health of the 
local community, understands local people’s health needs and promotes public health.  
5/5 assessments met 
 
Good management - This includes whether the trust treats staff fairly, stores information properly 
and carries out all the necessary checks before recruiting staff.  
17/17 assessments met 

 
5. EXPECTED OUTCOMES 
 

That the Panel notes and comments upon the information contained in the report.  
 
 
6. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
  

 The Annual Health Check 2007/08 ratings published by the Healthcare Commission on 16 
October 2008. 

 
 

20



 

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE 

SCRUTINY PANEL 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 9 

25 NOVEMBER 2008 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Contact Officer: Liz Boome, Scrutiny Performance Officer Tel. 452324 

 

 

FEEDBACK AND UPDATE REPORT 
 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

 

1.1 This is a regular report to the Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel and forms part of the 
Panel’s 2008/09 work programme. 

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 

 

2.1 The report provides feedback on items considered or questions asked at previous meetings of 
the Panel.  It also provides an update on matters which are of interest to the Panel or where 
members have asked to be kept informed of progress. 

 
3. SAFE SHARPS DISPOSAL PILOT PROJECT  

 
3.1 At its meeting on 22 July 2008 member were advised that It had come to the attention of the 

Chairman of this Panel that the recommendations of the joint working party comprising members 
from the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the Environment Policy Overview Committee 
and the Community Wellbeing Policy Overview Committee which undertook a review of the safe 
disposal of sharps working group and the decision of the Cabinet member had not been 
implemented. 

 
3.2 This was subsequently brought to the attention of Karen Kibblewhite, Community Safety and 

Substance Misuse Manager in October.  The current position of the project has now been 
established and the work undertaken so far reviewed. 

 
3.3 Up-to-date data has been collated to inform potential sites for the bins and ascertain whether the 

original proposed sites would still be the most effective.  The top ten sites where drug-related 
litter has been reported have been identified and currently consultation is underway with 
stakeholders to identify which of these would be appropriate for the pilot and whether there are 
any additional sites which would benefit. 

 
3.4 Since the inception of the project, the design of sharps bins has improved and discussions with 

manufacturers and with other areas who use public sites for sharps bins are underway, in order 
to ensure that the most effective bins are used, and also to investigate the possibility of using 
transferable bins.  Funding has been identified for the bins. 

 
3.5 Once sites have been agreed, and subject to sharps bins being delivered, the bins will be 

installed as soon as possible; a timescale of 3 months to complete the installation of bins is 
proposed. 

 
 In addition to the pilot project, three pieces of supporting work are currently taking place: 
 

§ Peterborough Drugs Service are undertaking proactive work with needle exchanges to 
encourage drug users to dispose of their needles and other injecting paraphernalia safely; 

21



§ The Safer Peterborough Partnership Team are developing processes to ensure that all drug-
related litter reports from the public and internally from partners are collated in a single place 
to enable a clear picture of hotspot areas; 

§ Drug workers from both Peterborough Drugs Service and from Peterborough DIP have visited 
sites where drug-related litter has been reported in order to attempt to engage with drug users 
and divert them into treatment. 

 
4. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

22



HEALTH AND ADULTS SOCIAL CARE 
SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

Agenda Item No. 10 

25 NOVEMBER 2008 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Director of Strategic Resources 
 
Report Author – Liz Boome, Performance Scrutiny Officer 
Contact Details – Tel 01733 452324 
 

FORWARD PLAN – 1 DECEMBER 2008 TO 31 MARCH 2009 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 

For the Panel to note the latest version of the Forward Plan; agree any areas for inclusion within 
the Panel’s work programme and submit any observations concerning the Plan to the Executive. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 

This is a regular report to the Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel, outlining the content 
of the Council’s Forward Plan. 

 
3. KEY ISSUES 
 

4.1 The latest version of the Forward Plan is attached at Appendix 1.  The Plan contains those key 
decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that the Cabinet or individual Cabinet 
Member(s) will be making over the next four months. 

 
4.2 The Panel may wish to include some of the items highlighted on the Plan onto their future work 

programme or to request additional information from the Executive before a decision is made.  
Any comments about the format of the Plan would also be welcomed.   

 
4.3 In accordance with the Council’s Executive procedure rules, the Cabinet or Cabinet Member will 

not make any key decision until at least five clear days after the receipt of the report relating to 
that decision.  The Group representatives of the Scrutiny Committee are sent a copy of these 
reports at the same time as the Cabinet Member and any comments can be passed onto the 
Member before a decision is made. 

 
4. EXPECTED OUTCOMES 
 

That the Panel notes the latest version of the Forward Plan; agrees any areas for inclusion within 
the Panel’s work programme and submits any observations concerning the Plan to the 
Executive. 
 

5. NEXT STEPS 
 

Areas agreed by the Panel to be included in the work programme and observations submitted to 
the Executive. 
 

6. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

  

 Peterborough City Council’s Forward Plan for 1 December 2008 to 31 March 2009. 
 
 
 

23



24

This page is intentionally left blank



     
      

P
E
T
E
R
B
O
R
O
U
G
H
 C
IT
Y
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
’S
 F
O
R
W
A
R
D
 P
L
A
N
 

  

1
  D
E
C
E
M
B
E
R
 2
0
0
8
 T
O
 3
1
 M
A
R
C
H
 2
0
0
9
 

25



 

 F
O
R
W
A
R
D
 P
L
A
N
 O
F
 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 –
 1
 D
E
C
E
M
B
E
R
 2
0
0
8
 T
O
 3
1
 M
A
R
C
H
 2
0
0
9
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  A

B
 

 
D
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 f
ro
m
 1
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 t
o
 3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 i
n
te
n
d
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 'k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
' 
o
n
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
b
e
lo
w
. 
 

K
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 r
e
la
te
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 o
r 
s
a
v
in
g
 m
o
n
e
y
 i
n
 e
x
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
£
5
0
0
,0
0
0
 a
n
d
/o
r 
h
a
v
e
 a
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
w
o
 o
r 
m
o
re
 w
a
rd
s
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

 T
h
is
 F
o
rw
a
rd
 P
la
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
e
e
n
 a
s
 a
n
 o
u
tl
in
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 i
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 o
n
 a
 m
o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
. 
 T
h
e
 d
a
te
s
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 a
re
 

s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 i
te
m
s
 a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 o
r 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 o
n
e
 m
o
n
th
 i
n
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
v
e
r 
to
 f
o
rt
h
c
o
m
in
g
 p
la
n
s
. 
 E
a
c
h
 n
e
w
 

p
la
n
 s
u
p
e
rs
e
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 p
la
n
. 
 A
n
y
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm
 w
h
ic
h
 a
p
p
e
a
rs
 a
t 
th
e
 b
a
c
k
 o
f 
th
e
 

P
la
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 L
in
d
s
a
y
 T
o
m
lin
s
o
n
, 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r,
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t,
 T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll,
 B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
E
1
 1
H
G
 (
fa
x
 0
1
7
3
3
 

4
5
2
4
8
3
).
 A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
ly
, 
y
o
u
 c
a
n
 s
u
b
m
it
 y
o
u
r 
v
ie
w
s
 v
ia
 e
-m
a
il 
to
 l
in
d
s
a
y
.t
o
m
lin
s
o
n
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 o
r 
b
y
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 o
n
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
2
3
8
. 

 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
v
it
e
s
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
t 
w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
a
p
e
rs
 l
is
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

v
ie
w
e
d
 f
re
e
 o
f 
c
h
a
rg
e
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
 p
o
s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
h
o
to
c
o
p
y
in
g
 c
h
a
rg
e
 f
o
r 
a
n
y
 c
o
p
ie
s
 m
a
d
e
. 
A
ll 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
o
s
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
: 

w
w
w
.p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
. 
  
If
 y
o
u
 w
is
h
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 o
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 'k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
' 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 P
la
n
, 
p
le
a
s
e
 s
u
b
m
it
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm
 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
. 
 F
o
r 
y
o
u
r 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
th
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
d
e
ta
ils
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 p
la
n
. 

 
 N
E
W
 I
T
E
M
S
 T
H
IS
 M
O
N
T
H
: 

•
 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

•
 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
g
is
te
r 
a
n
d
 A
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 P
o
lic
y
 

•
 
E
c
o
h
u
t 
P
ro
je
c
t 

•
 
V
e
n
d
o
r 
N
e
u
tr
a
l 
S
o
lu
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 S
ta
ff
 

 

          

26



 

 

 
D
E
C
E
M
B
E
R
 -
 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 R
E
Q
U
IR
E
D
 D
A
T
E
 O
F
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 
D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
  

C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
T
IO
N
 

 
C
O
N
T
A
C
T
 D
E
T
A
IL
S
 /
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

A
U
T
H
O
R
S
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
S
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
0
6
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

O
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 S
c
h
e
m
e
  

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

O
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
s
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
 

 T
h
is
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
n
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

fu
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
fo
r 
e
n
d
o
rs
e
m
e
n
t 

E
x
te
n
s
iv
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
ill
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

in
v
o
lv
in
g
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 m
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
ru
m
s
. 

G
ra
e
m
e
 L
a
w
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 G
ro
w
th
 &
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
8
2
5
 

g
ra
e
m
e
.l
a
w
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

M
o
v
in
g
 F
o
rw
a
rd
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 

c
a
re
 t
o
 b
e
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 

p
ro
v
id
e
r 
m
o
d
e
l 
o
f 
th
e
 P
C
T
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

  

P
u
b
lic
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
  
to
o
k
 

p
la
c
e
 i
n
 2
0
0
7
; 
H
A
S
C
 t
o
 

b
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 a
n
d
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

D
e
n
is
e
 R
a
d
le
y
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

0
1
7
3
3
 7
5
8
4
4
4
 

d
e
n
is
e
.r
a
d
le
y
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 a
n
d
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

P
la
n
 t
o
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

D
ra
ft
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
fo
r 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

a
n
d
 M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
o
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 t
o
 b
e
 

a
g
re
e
d
 a
s
 a
 b
a
s
is
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 C
a
p
it
a
l 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 a
n
d
 D
ra
ft
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 

C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t.
 

 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
rm
s
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
is
 o
f 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
, 
p
ri
o
r 
to
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 b
y
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
in
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

a
n
d
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

e
n
d
o
rs
e
m
e
n
t 
a
t 
fu
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

J
o
h
n
 B
la
ir
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
6
4
 

jo
h
n
.b
la
ir
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

27



 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 T
a
x
 B
a
s
e
  

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 t
h
e
 c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
ta
x
 b
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
  

 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 L
e
g
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 N
o
 

fo
rm
a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 

ta
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

 

J
o
h
n
 B
la
ir
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
6
4
 

jo
h
n
.b
la
ir
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
  

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 a
 C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
ti
n
g
 a
 C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

V
is
io
n
, 
S
p
o
rt
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 

L
ib
ra
ry
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

H
e
ri
ta
g
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
b
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
 

 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

 T
h
is
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
n
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

fu
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

P
a
n
e
l 

K
e
v
in
 T
ig
h
e
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
7
8
4
 

k
e
v
in
.t
ig
h
e
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

   

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

R
e
g
is
te
r 
a
n
d
 A
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
o
li
c
y
 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

R
e
g
is
te
r 
a
n
d
 A
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
o
lic
y
: 
U
n
a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
–
 c
la
ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

re
n
t 
a
rr
e
a
rs
; 
T
ra
n
s
fe
r 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
; 
R
e
fu
s
a
l 
o
f 

o
ff
e
rs
  
 

 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

 T
h
is
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
n
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

fu
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
h
o
ic
e
 

B
a
s
e
d
 L
e
tt
in
g
s
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 G
ro
u
p
; 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
h
o
ic
e
 

B
a
s
e
d
 L
e
tt
in
g
s
 B
o
a
rd
; 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 P
a
n
e
l 

 

A
d
ri
a
n
 C
h
a
p
m
a
n
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
8
8
7
 

a
d
ri
a
n
.c
h
a
p
m
a
n
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

   

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
4
 I
n
p
u
t 
to
 

R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
S
p
a
ti
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

(R
S
S
) 
R
e
v
ie
w
 

T
o
 g
iv
e
 a
d
v
ic
e
 t
o
 E
a
s
t 
o
f 

E
n
g
la
n
d
 R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

o
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 

R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
S
p
a
ti
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
o
 

2
0
3
1
 

 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 a
n
d
 R
e
g
io
n
a
l 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

C
o
ll
in
s
 a
n
d
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
H
o
u
s
in
g
, 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
M
u
rp
h
y
 

E
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 k
e
y
 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 
la
n
d
 a
g
e
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 c
h
a
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

c
o
m
m
e
rc
e
 

R
o
b
 B
ro
w
n
 

A
re
a
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
7
9
5
 

ro
b
e
rt
.b
ro
w
n
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

28



 

E
c
o
h
u
t 
P
ro
je
c
t 

T
o
 g
iv
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
d
 

p
a
rt
n
e
r 
(t
h
e
 F
o
re
s
tr
y
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
) 
to
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 

p
ro
je
c
t 
to
 c
re
a
te
 a
 f
a
m
ily
 

w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 

re
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 

p
u
rp
o
s
e
s
 

 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
c
o
tt
 

U
ff
o
rd
 P
a
ri
s
h
 C
o
u
n
c
il;
 

C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 

C
o
n
s
ta
b
u
la
ry
; 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il;
 N
a
tu
ra
l 

N
e
tw
o
rk
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
, 

G
re
a
te
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
; 
J
o
h
n
 C
la
re
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

  

D
a
rr
e
n
 S
h
a
rp
e
 

N
a
tu
ra
l 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
 L
e
a
d
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
3
5
9
6
 

d
a
rr
e
n
.s
h
a
rp
e
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

    

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

R
iv
e
rs
id
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
p
o
rt
s
 P
a
v
il
io
n
 

T
o
 a
p
p
o
in
t 
a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
to
 

b
u
ild
 t
h
e
 R
iv
e
rs
id
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
p
o
rt
s
 P
a
v
ili
o
n
. 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
c
o
tt
 

  

R
iv
e
rs
id
e
 R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
’ 

A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
, 
w
a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 a
n
d
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

u
s
e
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
. 
  

P
a
u
l 
S
te
v
e
n
e
tt
e
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

T
e
l.
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
7
5
 

p
a
u
l.
s
te
v
e
n
e
tt
e
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

S
c
h
e
d
u
le
 o
f 
R
a
te
s
 f
o
r 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
C
iv
il
 E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 

W
o
rk
s
 2
0
0
8
 –
 2
0
1
0
 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 a
 t
w
o
 y
e
a
r 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
s
m
a
ll 
a
n
d
 

m
e
d
iu
m
 h
ig
h
w
a
y
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
s
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
c
o
tt
 

  

In
te
rn
a
l 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

S
tu
a
rt
 M
o
u
n
fi
e
ld
 

S
e
n
io
r 
E
n
g
in
e
e
r 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
e
l.
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
3
5
9
8
 

s
tu
a
rt
.m
o
u
n
fi
e
ld
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

N
e
n
e
 B
ri
d
g
e
 

R
e
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 

re
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
c
o
tt
 

  

A
ll 
u
ti
lit
y
 c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
, 

N
e
tw
o
rk
 R
a
il,
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
A
g
e
n
c
y
, 

in
te
rn
a
l 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
, 

e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 C
ra
n
w
e
ll 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 T
e
a
m
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
e
l.
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
3
5
0
4
 

ri
c
h
a
rd
.c
ra
n
w
e
ll@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

29



 

F
u
tu
re
 o
f 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

C
e
n
tr
e
 (
P
P
D
C
) 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

fu
tu
re
 u
ti
lis
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 s
it
e
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
c
o
tt
 

 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
a
k
e
 

p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

W
a
rd
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 H
o
d
g
s
o
n
  

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ro
je
c
ts
 

T
e
l.
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
3
5
 

ri
c
h
a
rd
.h
o
d
g
s
o
n
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

V
e
n
d
o
r 
N
e
u
tr
a
l 
S
o
lu
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 
P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
ta
ff
 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 a
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 w
it
h
 a
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
fo
r 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

s
ta
ff
  

 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
c
o
tt
 

D
e
ta
ils
 a
w
a
it
e
d
 

C
h
ri
s
 B
e
rr
y
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
7
9
7
6
 6
1
9
9
0
6
 

c
h
ri
s
to
p
h
e
r.
b
e
rr
y
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

30



 

  

 
J
A
N
U
A
R
Y
 -
 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 R
E
Q
U
IR
E
D
 D
A
T
E
 O
F
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 
D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
  

C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
T
IO
N
 

 
C
O
N
T
A
C
T
 D
E
T
A
IL
S
 /
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

A
U
T
H
O
R
S
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
S
 

T
o
u
ri
s
t 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

T
o
 d
e
te
rm
in
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 f
o
r 
to
u
ri
s
t 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
0
9
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
L
e
e
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 

p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

s
ta
ff
, 
tr
a
d
e
s
 u
n
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

P
a
n
e
l 

 

L
in
d
a
 W
ill
s
 

T
o
u
ri
s
m
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
8
3
5
 

lin
d
a
.w
ill
s
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

   

31



 

    

 
F
E
B
R
U
A
R
Y
 -
 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 R
E
Q
U
IR
E
D
 D
A
T
E
 O
F
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 
D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
  

C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
T
IO
N
 

 
C
O
N
T
A
C
T
 D
E
T
A
IL
S
 /
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

A
U
T
H
O
R
S
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
S
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 a
n
d
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

P
la
n
 t
o
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 

c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 r
u
le
s
. 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 C
a
p
it
a
l 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
th
e
 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
, 
th
e
 A
d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 C
h
a
rg
in
g
 P
o
lic
y
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 D
ra
ft
 A
n
n
u
a
l 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t 

 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

2
0
0
9
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

 T
h
is
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
n
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

fu
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
h
is
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 f
o
llo
w
s
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 

d
ra
ft
 M
T
F
S
, 
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
in
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r.
 

J
o
h
n
 B
la
ir
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
6
4
 

jo
h
n
.b
la
ir
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

R
e
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
re
a
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
(L
A
A
) 
 

T
o
 s
ig
n
 o
ff
 t
h
e
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 

L
A
A
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 i
ts
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 

to
 t
h
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

2
0
0
9
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 a
n
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 H
u
m
a
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

P
e
a
c
h
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 f
o
ra
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 A
s
tl
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r,
 G
re
a
te
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
5
0
4
2
 

ri
c
h
a
rd
@
g
p
p
-p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.o
rg
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

32



 

 
M
A
R
C
H
 -
 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 R
E
Q
U
IR
E
D
 D
A
T
E
 O
F
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 
D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
  

C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
T
IO
N
 

 
C
O
N
T
A
C
T
 D
E
T
A
IL
S
 /
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

A
U
T
H
O
R
S
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
S
 

 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 n
o
 k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 
M
a
rc
h
. 

 

33



 

   C
H
IE
F
 E
X
E
C
U
T
IV
E
'S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

L
e
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

H
u
m
a
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

D
ru
g
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 D
ru
g
 a
n
d
 A
lc
o
h
o
l 
T
e
a
m
 

 C
IT
Y
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
N
u
rs
e
ry
 L
a
n
e
, 
F
e
n
g
a
te
, 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
  
P
E
1
 5
B
G
 

P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

B
u
ild
in
g
 &
 M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

S
tr
e
e
ts
c
e
n
e
 a
n
d
 F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IC
 R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
D
ir
e
c
to
r'
s
 O
ff
ic
e
 a
t 
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
  

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 T
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 (
IC
T
) 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
  

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
S
’ 
S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
B
a
y
a
rd
 P
la
c
e
, 
B
ro
a
d
w
a
y
, 
P
E
1
 1
F
B
 

F
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

34



 

 O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
B
ri
d
g
e
 H
o
u
s
e
, 
T
o
w
n
 B
ri
d
g
e
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
B
 

 P
la
n
n
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

B
u
ild
in
g
 C
o
n
tr
o
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
a
n
d
 P
u
b
lic
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

C
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 

35



36

This page is intentionally left blank



H
E
A
L
T
H
 A
N
D
 A
D
U
L
T
S
 S
O
C
IA
L
 C
A
R
E
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 P
L
A
N
 

W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 2
0
0
8
-9
 

D
a
te
 o
f 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

It
e
m
 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 w
h
a
t 
th
e
 P
a
n
e
l 
is
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

to
 d
o
) 

It
e
m
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 b
y
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
T
e
rm

s
 o
f 

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

6
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
0
9
 

(P
a
p
e
rs
 

d
e
s
p
a
tc
h
e
d
 

–
 2
3
 D
e
c
) 

 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

b
u
d
g
e
t,
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 D
ra
ft
 A
n
n
u
a
l 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t.
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
h
n
 H
a
rr
is
o
n
 

 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 

P
o
lic
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 

th
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

 
A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
re
v
ie
w
 l
e
tt
e
r 
o
n
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 f
o
r 
S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 (
C
S
C
I)
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
D
e
n
is
e
 R
a
d
le
y
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 A
d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 p
o
rt
fo
lio
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
g
u
la
r 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

Id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
n
y
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
 

 
B
u
d
g
e
ta
ry
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 b
u
d
g
e
ta
ry
 r
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
N
H
S
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
D
a
v
id
 B
a
c
o
n
, 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
F
in
a
n
c
e
 &
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
, 
P
C
T
 

 

N
H
S
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 o
f 
a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 

th
e
 b
e
s
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w
e
ll 

b
e
in
g
. 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 N
H
S
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

 
U
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 A
d
u
lt
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
  

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 s
ix
 

m
o
n
th
ly
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
y
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
D
e
n
is
e
 R
a
d
le
y
 

  

O
ff
ic
e
r 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 o
f 
a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 

th
e
 b
e
s
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w
e
ll 

b
e
in
g
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
n
y
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
 

37



H
E
A
L
T
H
 A
N
D
 A
D
U
L
T
S
 S
O
C
IA
L
 C
A
R
E
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 P
L
A
N
 

W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 2
0
0
8
-9
 

D
a
te
 o
f 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

It
e
m
 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 w
h
a
t 
th
e
 P
a
n
e
l 
is
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

to
 d
o
) 

It
e
m
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 b
y
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
T
e
rm

s
 o
f 

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

1
7
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

2
0
0
9
 

(P
a
p
e
rs
 

d
e
s
p
a
tc
h
e
d
 

–
 9
 F
e
b
) 

 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 f
o
r 
B
e
tt
e
r 
H
e
a
lt
h
 (
A
n
n
u
a
l 

H
e
a
lt
h
 C
h
e
c
k
) 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 b
e
 

a
d
o
p
te
d
 f
o
r 
re
c
e
iv
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 4
 B
e
tt
e
r 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
s
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
L
iz
 B
o
o
m
e
 

 

P
P
C
T
/P
&
S
 

H
o
s
p
it
a
ls
/M
e
n
ta
l 

H
e
a
lt
h
 T
ru
s
t 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 o
f 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 
b
o
d
ie
s
 o
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

T
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
ll 
o
f 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

s
ta
tu
to
ry
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 7
 a
n
d
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 

re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 A
c
t 
2
0
0
1
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
ts
 

 
Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
n
d
 

k
e
y
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
n
 t
h
e
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
2
0
0
7
/0
8
 a
n
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
o
th
e
r 
s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
T
in
a
 H
o
rn
s
b
y
 

 

P
a
n
e
l 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 A
d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 p
o
rt
fo
lio
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
g
u
la
r 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

Id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
n
y
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
 

 
A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

R
e
la
te
d
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 N
e
e
d
s
 f
o
r 
O
ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le
 

 

U
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r(
s
) 
–
 D
e
n
is
e
 

R
a
d
le
y
/A
li
s
o
n
 R
e
id
 

  

N
H
S
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 o
f 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 
b
o
d
ie
s
 o
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
y
 

m
a
tt
e
r 
th
e
 P
a
n
e
l 

c
o
n
s
id
e
rs
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 N
H
S
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

  
   

 
 

 
 

38



H
E
A
L
T
H
 A
N
D
 A
D
U
L
T
S
 S
O
C
IA
L
 C
A
R
E
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 P
L
A
N
 

W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 2
0
0
8
-9
 

 
D
a
te
 o
f 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

 
It
e
m
 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 w
h
a
t 
th
e
 P
a
n
e
l 
is
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

to
 d
o
) 

 
It
e
m
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 b
y
 

 
T
y
p
e
 o
f 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

 
R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
T
e
rm

s
 o
f 

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 

 
E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
9
 

(P
a
p
e
rs
 

d
e
s
p
a
tc
h
e
d
 

–
 2
3
 M
a
rc
h
) 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 f
o
r 
B
e
tt
e
r 
H
e
a
lt
h
 (
A
n
n
u
a
l 

H
e
a
lt
h
 C
h
e
c
k
) 

(i
) 

T
o
 
e
n
d
o
rs
e
 
th
e
 
P
a
n
e
l’s
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

fo
r 
in
c
lu
s
io
n
 w
it
h
 a
ll 
lo
c
a
l 
N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
s
 
to
 
th
e
 
H
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

(i
i)
 
T
o
 
c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 
d
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
s
 
o
f 

c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
y
 
o
f 
a
ll 
th
e
 
lo
c
a
l 
N
H
S
 

T
ru
s
ts
 
p
ri
o
r 
to
 
th
e
ir
 
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 
to
 

th
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
L
iz
 B
o
o
m
e
 

 

O
ff
ic
e
r 
a
n
d
 N
H
S
 

T
ru
s
ts
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 o
f 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 
b
o
d
ie
s
 o
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

T
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
ll 
o
f 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

s
ta
tu
to
ry
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 7
 a
n
d
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 

re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 A
c
t 
2
0
0
1
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
ts
 

 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
e
e
n
a
g
e
 

P
re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 a
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 

th
e
 h
ig
h
 r
a
te
s
 o
f 
te
e
n
a
g
e
 p
re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 i
n
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
 M
e
lv
in
 

 

P
a
n
e
l 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 A
d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 p
o
rt
fo
lio
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
g
u
la
r 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 

 
U
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 A
d
u
lt
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
  

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 s
ix
 

m
o
n
th
ly
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
y
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
D
e
n
is
e
 R
a
d
le
y
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 o
f 
a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 

th
e
 b
e
s
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w
e
ll 

b
e
in
g
. 

 

Id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
n
y
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
 

     

39



H
E
A
L
T
H
 A
N
D
 A
D
U
L
T
S
 S
O
C
IA
L
 C
A
R
E
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 P
L
A
N
 

W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 2
0
0
8
-9
 

 It
e
m
s
 t
o
 b
e
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 

 

1
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
–
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 (
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
) 

2
. 
P
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 e
lig
ib
ili
ty
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 t
h
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 

3
. 
H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
D
is
c
h
a
rg
e
s
 –
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 (
P
P
I 
F
o
ru
m
) 

4
. 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
C
a
re
rs
 –
 e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 o
n
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 c
a
re
rs
 

5
. 
T
e
le
c
a
re
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 –
 (
E
lle
n
 W
h
it
e
) 

 H
e
a
lt
h
 

 1
. 
1
8
 W
e
e
k
 P
a
ti
e
n
t 
P
a
th
w
a
y
 –
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 (
T
ri
s
h
 M
c
H
u
g
h
) 

2
. 
O
u
r 
N
H
S
, 
O
u
r 
F
u
tu
re
 R
e
v
ie
w
 –
 L
o
rd
 D
a
rz
i’s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 (
S
H
A
 R
e
v
ie
w
) 

3
. 
N
IC
E
 –
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 d
ra
ft
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 (
S
u
e
 M
it
c
h
e
ll,
 C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 G
re
e
r)
 

4
. 
P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 –
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 (
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 b
y
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
n
g
 G
P
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
) 

5
. 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 H
o
s
p
it
a
ls
 N
H
S
 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 
–
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
G
re
a
te
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 H
e
a
lt
h
 I
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l 
u
p
d
a
te
) 

6
. 
F
u
tu
re
 r
e
c
o
n
fi
g
u
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

7
. 
S
p
e
a
rh
e
a
d
 P
C
T
 

8
. 
R
e
m
o
d
e
lli
n
g
 o
f 
D
ia
b
e
te
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

9
. 
E
x
p
e
rt
 C
a
re
rs
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

1
0
. 
E
n
d
 o
f 
lif
e
 c
a
re
 n
e
tw
o
rk
s
 

1
1
. 
O
u
t 
o
f 
h
o
u
rs
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

1
2
. 
C
h
o
o
s
e
 a
n
d
 b
o
o
k
 

1
3
. 
L
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 –
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
e
c
h
n
iq
u
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 m
ig
ra
n
t 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
h
a
rd
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

1
4
. 
C
F
S
/M
E
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

1
5
. 
A
m
b
u
la
n
c
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 –
 f
u
tu
re
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 

1
6
. 
C
h
ir
o
p
o
d
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

1
9
. 
H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
H
y
g
ie
n
e
 (
re
p
o
rt
 o
n
 f
o
llo
w
-u
p
 b
y
 H
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
).
 

 R
e
g
u
la
r 
It
e
m
s
 

 

1
. 
P
P
C
T
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
  

40


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting of the Health & Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel held on 14 October 2008
	4 Peterborough LINk - Presentation from the Shaw Trust
	5 Review of  the Council's Charging Policy for Adult Social Care Services
	6 NHS Peterborough 5 year Strategic Plan
	7 Peterborough Community Services
	8 Annual Health Check - results of the 2007/08 check published by the Healthcare Commission
	9 Feedback and Update Report
	10 Forward Plan of Key Decisions
	081125 - HASC - Item 10a - Forward Plan - Dec 08 -Mar 09

	11 Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel Work Programme 2008/09

